
1 
 

��
�$�1�$�/�<�6�,�6���2�)���$�*�5�(�(�0�(�1�7���&�2�1�7�$�,�1�,�1�*���&�2�1�6�(�1�7���2�5�'�(�5����

�7�2���$�,�'���3�8�%�/�,�&���&�2�0�0�(�1�7��

�7�H�O�V�K�����&�D�U�V�R�Q�����$�Q�G�H�U�V�R�Q�����D�Q�G���6�W�R�Z�H���D�Q�G���L�W�V���D�I�I�L�O�L�D�W�H�V�����F�R�O�O�H�F�W�L�Y�H�O�\���³�:�H�O�V�K���&�D�U�V�R�Q�´���R�U��

ñRespondentsò). The Consent Agreement settles charges that Welsh Carson violated Section 5 of 
the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. Ä 45, and Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 
Ä 18, by conspiring to monopolize or controlling, directing, or encouraging the illegal 
consolidation of hospital-only anesthesia services in Texas.  

 
Welsh Carson is a private equity firm that invests in and manages a portfolio of 

companies in the healthcare and technology sectors. It runs this business using various corporate 
entities that share personnel and resources, including WCAS Management Corporation, WCAS 
Management, LLC, WCAS Management LP, WCAS XII Associates, LLC, and funds such as 
WCAS XI. All these various corporate entities act together as a single company, and are referred 
to as ñWelsh Carsonò or ñthe Firm.ò 

 
In 2012, Welsh Carson created U.S. Anesthesia Partners, Inc. (ñUSAPò) to consolidate 

anesthesia practice groups in Texas. Working together with Welsh Carson, USAP acquired at 
least 15 competitors in Houston, Dallas, Austin, and across Texas, significantly raising the prices 
each charged for anesthesia services. Through 2017, Welsh Carson maintained control of USAP 
through its majority ownership stake or because it held the voting rights of almost all of the other 
shareholders. Today, Welsh Carson remains USAPôs single-largest shareholder and the most 
influential member of its board of directors.  
 

The purpose of the Consent Agreement is to protect the public from Welsh Carsonôs 
potential future anticompetitive conduct and deter others from engaging in similar 
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Commission in determining whether it should make the proposed Order final. This analysis is 
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determine whether any entity is part of the Respondent, and control over future investments (see 
Sections III and IV of the proposed Order) will be determined across all WCAS Parties. 

 
Section II of the proposed Order limits Respondentsô ongoing ownership rights and 

entanglements with USAP. Paragraphs II.A and II.B freeze Respondentsô current investment in 
USAP and reduce their board representation to a single seatðwho cannot serve as chairmanð
thereby preventing Welsh Carson from retaking control over USAP and reducing Respondentsô 
ability to benefit from USAPôs monopoly position in Texas. To remove any unnecessary 
connections between Respondents and USAP, Paragraph II.C further requires Respondents, upon 
a written request from USAP, to terminate (without penalty) contracts under which Respondents 
provide services to USAP.  

 
To prevent recurrence of Respondentsô alleged conduct in anesthesia markets, Section III 

of the proposed Order requires Respondents to obtain prior approval or provide the Commission 
notice before completing certain transactions. Such provisions alert the Commission about 
transactions before they occur, so that the Commission can attempt to stop future anticompetitive 
serial acquisitions in their incipiency. Prior approval and notice provisions can be particularly 
important for acquisitions that fall below HSR reporting thresholds, like many of those 
anticompetitive transactions alleged in the Complaint. Because Respondents have historically 
invested in anesthesia practices in multiple states, Section III extends nationwide. Paragraph 
III.A requires prior approval for specified transactions in which Respondents plan to acquire an 
ownership interest in an anesthesia practice, either through a Respondent itself or through an 
anesthesia business in which Respondents already have a controlling interest. Paragraph III.B 
applies when an anesthesia business in which Respondents have a non-controlling ownership 
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